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The purpose of this amendment is to:

1. Provide answers to questions on the RFP;

2. Change the guaranteed minimum value of this contract in Clause I.A.1;

3. Delete Paragraph “(o) Warranty” of 52-212-4 in its entirety;

4. Change Clause II.A.19, Mission Success Determination, Investigation, and Corrective Action, to clarify:
(a) “Re-flight” will not be required under FAR 52.246-4;

(b) Prior milestone  payments will not be required upon reaching the considerations of the last payment milestone as required in Clause II.A.6 Resupply Mission Payments, Milestone Events and Completion Criteria; and
(c) Cargo liability implications while in flight are clarified;
5. Clarify the evaluation of Past Performance in Section VII;
6. Delete a sentence from Clause VI.A.19;
7. Move Deviations and/or Exceptions (Mission Suitability Proposal) in Section VI.A.20.4 to Section VI.A.19 and modify it;

8. Incorporate NFS 1852.245-72 Liability for Government Property Furnished for Repair or Other Services at Clause II.A.26;
9. Update DRDs C3-2 and C4-3 for consistency with Statement of Work L-minus dates;
10. Add items to Attachment V.K for Government supplied hardware;
11. Allow offerors to propose alternate conditions for Clause II.A.19 consistent with the instructions for offeror at Provision VI.A.22 (related changes occur in Provisions VI.A.18, VI.A.19, VII.D, and I.A.4A);
12. Extend the due date for Proposal Volumes I, II, and III by 14 days.  The volumes are to be delivered by June 30, 2008.
13. Add SPDM compatibility information to Attachment V.F External Cargo Complement.

14. Clarify “cost/price” throughout the RFP to be “price.”
NOTE: The RFP cover letter has been revised with change bars including task order evaluation procedures.  The task order procedures remain outside of the evaluation of the basic contract.
This amendment reissues the RFP in its entirety to incorporate changes.  Areas of change are indicated with change bars in the margin.
1.  The following answers are in response to questions and comments from the RFP:

	#
	Question
	Response 

	Q-114
	It is stated in the RFP the guaranteed minimum value of this contract is the negotiated value of 20,000 kg (20 MT) of upmass to the International Space Station (ISS) based on the values established in Clause I.A.4.  The total maximum value of each contract awarded is $3.1 billion. It is further stated that: (cargo mass table by year).  Are we to assume the maximum number of possible awardees will be two i.e. a total of 47.9 MT of upmass is available and the guaranteed minimum is 20 MT or can there be three possible awardees i.e. a total of 82.4 MT of upmass and downmass is available with a guaranteed minimum of 20 MT?
	The guaranteed minimum value of this contract(s) is the negotiated value of 20,000 kg (20 MT) of upmass to the International Space Station (ISS) based on the values established in Clause I.A.4.  If the contract includes the acceptance of Sub-CLIN 0001AC, the guaranteed minimum value of this contract is increased by the negotiated value of 3,000 kg (3MT) of Return Cargo Downmass based on the values established in Clause I.A.4.  NASA is not precluded from awarding to more than two offerors.  However, with the 47.9MT requirement in the existing solicitation it will be probable that NASA will award to two offerors.

	Q-115
	It is stated in the RFP the total maximum value of each contract awarded is $3.1 billion. Are we to assume that this will be the total amount available regardless of NASA procuring Russian Progress cargo supply missions i.e. if no US ISS CRS awardee is operational in 2010 will NASA use part of the $3.1 billion to buy Russian Progress Cargo supply missions or will it allocate to the awardee for a later years?
	The maximum value of any basic contract awarded is $3.1 billion.  The expectation of this contract is to fulfill the stated transportation requirements commercially.  NASA cannot at this time speculate on the failure to meet these requirements.


	#
	Question
	Response 

	Q-116
	In order to accurately identify acceptance and warranty coverage risk in proposed NTEs, contractors' potential responsibility for re-flight or costs of re-flight needs to be understood.  The RFP includes an inspection clause with broad remedies, as well as a commercial warranty term.  Paragraph II.A.11(e) includes FAR 52.246-5 Inspection of Services-Cost Reimbursement.  It provides several remedies, including re-performance of services that do not conform with contract requirements at no increase in prices.  In addition, Para II (o) Warranty, a standard UCC warranty, could be interpreted to require reflight.  NASA’s response to question 105 as well as the new cross-waiver language seem to indicate that warranty for re-flight is not intended, yet the contract clauses do not preclude it.  Rather than have contractor NTE prices that reflect projected risks and greatly increased insurance requirements for these new commercial services, would NASA allow a limited commercial disclaimer that eliminates re-flight as a remedy?  In other words, would NASA self insure to avoid the inclusion of projected re-flight costs in contractors' offers?
	NASA has deleted paragraph “(o) Warranty” from Clause 52.212-4 and will not require re-flight.  Once the Contractor is in position to merit a determination of  “Mission Success”, “Mission Failure”, or “Partial Success”, in accordance with Clause II.A.19, Mission Success Determination, Investigation, and Corrective Action, NASA will not ask for reperformance of reflight under paragraph (e) of Clause II.A.11, Inspection of Services-Fixed Price (FAR 52.246-4) Aug 1996).  Clause, II.A.19, Mission Success Determination, Investigation, and Corrective Action, has been revised to incorporate this change to clarify precedence, as well as a change to clarify that prior progress payments will not be required to be returned once the conditions for evaluation of “Mission Success”, “Mission Failure”, or “Partial Success” begin.  

	Q-117
	The UCC type warranty at II(o) allowing for consequential damages seems inconsistent with other Government risk management approaches.  Cross waivers and Commercial Space Launch Act coverage are examples that serve to limit liability in a manner that promotes commercial space. It is not clear that the warranty term can be flowed down to all potential suppliers in a service procurement that also includes development.  Such terms are typically not available in the commercial market so compliance with the term could be problematic.  FAR 12.302 permits tailoring of clauses to reflect customary commercial practice.  Would NASA remove the warranty or permit a limited disclaimer against consequential damages?  The Government already has remedies under FAR 52.246-4 Inspection for non-conforming goods or services. 
	NASA has deleted paragraph “(o) Warranty” from clause 52.212-4.


	#
	Question
	Response 

	Q-118
	The Risk of Loss provision at II(j) assigns risk of loss of supplies, which we read to include cargo provided by the government, to the contractor.  However, the Limitation of liability provision at II(p), only limits liability for consequential damages resulting from defects in "accepted items".  The risk of loss of cargo and any consequential damages appears to be covered in the cross-waiver as a Protected Space Operation.  In this case, could NASA remove the limitation in II(p) to “accepted items?”  As an alternative, could NASA include FAR 52.246-23 and FAR 52.246-24 with Alt 1 to cover supplies, and FAR 52.246-25 to cover the provision of services?  
	Paragraph (j) states "unless the contract specifically provides otherwise" the limitation of liability provisions apply.  NASA has incorporated Clause 1852.245-72 Liability for Government Property Furnished for Repair or Other Services to address liability considerations related to cargo provided by the Government.  In addition, Clause II.A.19, Mission Success Determination, Investigation, and Corrective Action, has been revised to clarify that cargo destroyed or damaged under the auspices of this Clause (II.A.19) will take precedence over Clause 1852.245-72 and the liability for that cargo will be limited to forfeiture of the last milestone payment.

	Q-119
	Mission Success criteria clause II.A.19 was modified extensively in the final RFP with final determination of the success criteria deferred until the Vehicle Baseline Review (VBR).  This would require contractors to propose NTE service prices without any clear definition of what constitutes a mission success.  Uncertainty regarding the definition of mission success is not in NASA’s nor the contractors best interest and would result in higher NTE prices.  Would NASA consider allowing the contractor to propose mission success criteria for documentation in this clause so that this uncertainty could be eliminated?
	Yes, NASA will allow the offeror to propose optional mission success definitions and criteria, should they choose to do so.  (See provision VI.A.22)

	Q-120
	NASA’s minimum task order guarantee of 20Mt promotes investment and competition but applies only to upmass.  Given the importance of downmass capabilities to ISS sustaining and utilization, and in order to assure that the capability is available when needed, would NASA consider to guarantee a minimum order for return cargo down mass for offerors who propose that capability? An increase to the contract minimum for awardees who offer return capability by the value of 4 mT of return mass cargo would stimulate investment and competition for that important capability.
	The RFP has been revised.  If the contract includes the acceptance of Sub-CLIN 0001AC, the guaranteed minimum value of this contract is increased by the negotiated value of 3,000 kg (3 MT) of Return Cargo Downmass based on the values established in Clause I.A.4.


	#
	Question
	Response 

	Q-121
	Termination for the Government’s convenience (clause II(l)) allows NASA to issue a stop work order at any time.  For contractors who have a substantial corporate investment program to develop the capabilities that NASA has requested, a unilateral stop work order would represent an unreasonable financial burden if NASA would not allow consideration of any non-recurring engineering expenses. The contractors recognize, however, that NASA needs the ability to terminate for convenience.  Would NASA consider a modification to the clause to allow some recognition for these non-recurring expenses as a reasonable charge if this termination was invoked prior to the first flight of a new capability?
	No, changes will not occur in the termination for convenience clause.  Paragraph (l) of clause 52.212-4, details that, “Subject to the terms of this contract, the Contractor shall be paid a percentage of the contract price reflecting the percentage of the work performed prior to the notice of termination, plus reasonable charges the Contractor can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Government using its standard record keeping system, have resulted from the termination.”  If the “non-recurring” expenses meet the requirements of paragraph (l) they will be considered.  Of note, the costs of System Design, Development, Test and Evaluation, including ISS Integration, are not considered under the terms of this contract. 

	Q-122
	Could RFP requirement for text size in graphics be changed from 10 point minimum to 8 point minimum?
	No, the 10 point minimum text size for graphics was established to ensure that proposal contents are readable for all evaluators.

	Q-123
	RFP cover letter states "Increase of the contract minimum to 20 metric tons."  RFP I.A.3 states "The guaranteed minimum value of this contract is the negotiated value of 20,000 kg (20 MT) of upmass to the International Space Station (ISS)…"  Please update cover letter statement to read "Increase of the contract minimum to 20 metric tons of upmass to the ISS." 
	Yes.  The RFP cover letter has been adjusted to reflect the changes in the contract minimum.  However, NASA does not intend to make further changes to the cover letter since it is not a part of the contract.

	Q-124
	Does Para. 18.1 exclude NASA insight and approval of component subcontractors of the launch vehicle and orbital vehicle supplier, since these subcontractors aren't mentioned in this clause?
	No, Paragraph II.A.18.1 includes subcontractors for the resupply service and suppliers of components of the launch and orbital vehicles. The RFP states that insight includes activities by "any other business entity actually performing launch or orbital vehicle manufacturing."

	Q-125
	The section calls out that NASA will evaluate the safety and health plan and refers to DRD C1-2; however DRD C1-2 is not the Safety and Health Plan.  Also, the Mishap Report refers to DRD C1-4, which is not the Mishap Report.  Section M.1 fails to call out the C1-4 CM Plan.  Please resolve the inconsistencies of references made to DRDs C1-2 and C1-4 throughout the RFP.  Also update evaluation section to define the evaluation criteria to be used on each of these DRDs.                          
	The DRD references were corrected in Amendment 1 to the Final RFP.  DRDs C1-2 and C1-4 will be evaluated under Section VII.B. Subfactor B.


	#
	Question
	Response 

	Q-126
	Page 85 - DRD C1-5 Export Control Plan  --  This DRD includes recurring submittal dates that are different from Page 76.   Page 86 says final plan due 120 days after contract award, while page 76 says "updates at program reviews."    Contractor Request: Request that page 76 be updated to say that the recurrence submittal of DRD C1-5 be set at 120 days after contract award.   Once this is initially approved, it is normally only updated when there is any change in foreign component suppliers, not at each major program review.
	The dates on the DRL table (Attachment V.B) include the very first submittal, at ATP+30 days, and then the recurring dates for updates during the life of the contract.  Recurrent updates are required at Program Reviews as applicable.

	Q-127
	The past performance volume asks the contractor fill out Exhibits 2 and 4 in the instructions; however the evaluation criteria refers to Exhibits 3 & 4.  We believe the correct references for Past Performance should be Exhibits 2 & 3 (as Exhibit 4 refers to Key Personnel and Resumes).  Please confirm the correct Exhibit references for Past Performance.  
	Clarifications have been made in Section VII of the RFP regarding the Past Performance evaluation and the associated exhibits.

	Q-128
	No specific evaluation criteria has been listed for the "Deviations & Exceptions" part of the Mission Suitability Volume.  Please define the specific proposal evaluation criteria for "Deviations & Exceptions".
	"Deviations and/or Exceptions" has been moved from Section VI.A.20.4 in the Mission Suitability Volume to Section VI.A.19 Offer Volume and clarifications have been made.  Therefore, it is not an evaluation criterion under Mission Suitability.

	Q-129
	Chart 44 of Pre-Proposal Conference and Q-97 of Amendment No. 001 defines ISS integration as the set of activities required to ensure that SSP 50808, ISS to COTS Interface Requirements Document, requirements have been met, necessary hardware and software development to interface with the ISS have been completed, and joint on-orbit integrated operations plans have been finalized.   Contractor Request:  Please provide a more specific definition of the completion criteria for "necessary hardware and software development to interface with the ISS have been completed, and joint on-orbit integrated operations plans have been finalized."  Is there a specific program review and specific data requirements (DRD's) that when completed will satisfy the completion criteria for ISS integration?
	The requirements to meet ISS integration are all defined in SSP 50808.  This includes design, interface, performance, and operational requirements to ensure safe integration with the ISS.  The offeror must meet all requirements in this document and show compliance through approved verification processes.  This activity may be a parallel effort managed through the Commercial, Crew and Cargo Program Office (C3PO) under a Space Act Agreement and is not part of the services procured under this contract.  Therefore, there is not a DRD under this contract that levies specific data requirements.  These requirements are managed jointly by the ISS Program Office and the C3PO.


	#
	Question
	Response 

	Q-130
	Will the defined term, ISS Integration, be written into the contract?
	Yes, the definition of ISS integration has been added in the Attachment V.I Glossary.    

	Q-131
	Should the references to "cost" in (A), (B) and (C) really be "price"?
	Yes, appropriate changes are reflected in Amendment 2 of the RFP.

	Q-132
	The RFP states that "NASA will provide external cargo to the Contractor without Flight Support Equipment".  It is our understanding that any FSE (such as thermal control coatings/blankets) that is required for an ORU to survive it's environment after delivery to ISS.   Please confirm.  Also, please clarify where the contractor's FSE obligation begins.  For FRAM based ORU's and payloads, is the contractor responsible for providing both halves of the FRAM?  Is the contractor responsible for providing the adapter plate between the FRAM and the ORU? Is the contractor responsible for providing packaging for the ORU? 
	Any support equipment (e.g. thermal blankets) that will remain on orbit with the ORU will be supplied to the offeror as part of the ORU for a particular mission.  The offeror is responsible for all FSE necessary to integrate the ORU to their respective carrier to ensure the ORU arrives safely and functionally intact.  This includes adapter plates and both halves of the FRAM if this design option is chosen.

	Q-133
	Under the heading "Format/Contents", the first paragraph states that "an ICD shall be developed for each payload or ORU as part of the ICA".  The Second paragraph states that only active payloads or ORU's require an ICD.  Please clarify.
	Each external ORU or payload requires an ICD regardless of whether it is active or passive.  The RFP (DRD C3-2) has been updated to clarify this requirement. 

	Q-134
	What is the mechanism by which the Contractor will be notified of any changes to the ISS requirements (SSP 50808 and SSP 50833 or any of their Applicable Documents)?  Will any such changes be covered under the Changes Clause (II.A.10)?
	The contracting officer will notify the contractor of a proposed change to applicable documents that are to be incorporated into the contract.  These changes may be incorporated under the authority of clause II.A.10 Change-Fixed Price (Deviation) (FAR 52.243-1) (Aug 1987) Alternate II or as a supplemental agreement (FAR 43.103(a)(3)).  

	Q-135
	Under the "PREFLIGHT IMAGERY PLAN (PFIP)" heading, the second to the last sentence states "For the orbital vehicle pressurized module, the PFIP shall be submitted to NASA at L-12 months."  However, in the paragraph titled "PRESSURIZED CARGO IMAGERY", the second to last sentence states "The contractor shall submit the PFIP to NASA at L-5 months."  Finally, the last paragraph in the section titled "IMAGERY SUBMITTALS", a sentence states "Imagery will be submitted to NASA at L-2 months."  Please resolve the apparent discrepancy in submittal requirements and update RFP accordingly.
	The RFP has been updated to make DRD C4-3 consistent with Section 2.3.3.2 Imagery in the SOW.  The SOW correctly identifies the requirement to submit a Pre-Flight Imagery Plan at L-6 months for both the pressurized and unpressurized cargo, if applicable to the offeror’s capabilities.  The statement in DRD C4-3 section “Imagery Submittals” is correct that all images (as opposed to the plan) shall be delivered at L-2 months.


	#
	Question
	Response 

	Q-136
	In C4-2, 12), ii) and C6-1, 12), ii) it states "Report shall include guaranteed environment during flight".  Please define the term "guaranteed environment".
	The guaranteed environments are those limits from the Vehicle IDD (DRD C3-1) specified by the Contractor and approved by NASA.

	Q-137
	What are the minimum payload weight requirements per launch for all of the following: pressurized upmass, unpressurized upmass, minimum disposable down mass, minimum returnable downmass?
	The mass of cargo that is expected to fly per mission is dependent upon the provider's vehicle capability.  A provider will be awarded a minimum amount of upmass, downmass, and disposal in a given task order which may be distributed across several missions. 

	Q-138
	Could you please give examples of what is meant by 'pressurized' and  'unpressurized' cargo?
	Pressurized cargo will be delivered to the interior of the ISS.  Unpressurized cargo will be delivered to the exterior of the ISS.

	Q-139
	Can we expect a launch to consist entirely of pressurized or unpressurized cargo?
	The cargo complement that is expected to fly per mission is dependent upon the provider's vehicle capability.

	Q-140
	What are the maximum dimensions of dry cargo that a  carrier would be required to transport?
	Typical cargo requirements can be found in SSP 50833, ISS Cargo IRD. Anything unique outside of the Cargo IRD will be considered under CLIN 3. 

	Q-141
	Who clears and monitors the airspace, ocean drop zones and ocean hazard areas around the Cape before during and after launch?  Is this an Air Force US, Coast Guard, and/or Navy function?  Who pays for these services?  Is the cost assumed by NASA, since the commercial carrier is hauling a government payload?
	The U.S. Air Force 45th Space Wing executes the Range functions and deploys air and surface assets from all agencies to police the launch hazard area as necessary.  The Contractor bears the cost of Range services.

	Q-142
	Is the offerer solely responsible for physical security of the launch pad?  Is this a 24/7 requirement?  What level of security is required to ensure protection of the facility, cargo, etc.?  Are we required to contract with the NASA security force?
	The safety and security of the launch pad and cargo is the responsibility of the Contractor.

	Q-143
	Who handles ocean recovery?
	Statement of Work Section 2.4.7 deals with Cargo Return and/or Disposal.  If ocean recovery is a step in the service proposed, it is the responsibility of the Contractor.

	Q-144
	Who handles security in an open ocean zone when retrieving returned government cargo?
	Statement of Work Section 2.4.7 deals with Cargo Return and/or Disposal.  It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure safe return of NASA cargo when part of a mission.

	Q-145
	How far does the ocean Range and Kennedy Space Center jurisdiction extend?
	The Launch Hazard Area is chiefly dependent on the energy content and debris potential of the launch vehicle, its trajectory and its launch azimuth.  The Range may send functions to destroy a vehicle violating termination rules as long as it is in line-of-sight with the range transmitters.  The U.S. Air Force 45th Space Wing is responsible for Range functions.


	#
	Question
	Response 

	Q-146
	If operating an ocean-based launch, who handles security  in an open ocean zone when retrieving returned government cargo?
	Statement of Work Section 2.4.7 deals with Cargo Return and/or Disposal.  It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure safe return of NASA cargo when part of a mission.

	Q-147
	Can we lease the Cape ISS SAF integration clean room?  If not, and we must build our own, what are the clean room requirements?  What minimum particulate level tolerance is  required?
	Outside of this contract, a provider may pursue usage agreements for Government or commercial facilities to accomplish particular aspects of the services required under this contract.   This must be negotiated directly with the Government Agency or commercial owner of the facility.  Clean room requirements are documented in SN-C-005, Contamination and Control Requirements, which can be referenced in the ISS CRS technical library. 

	Q-148
	What is meant by a composite hourly rate?
	It may be necessary to have Special Task Assignments as defined in SOW Section 4.0 completed.  The offeror must determine the mix of skills necessary to complete this type of work and to create a weighted average or composite labor rate reflecting the weighting of the skilled labor rates which compose it.  The composite labor rate shall be fully burdened and include profit.  The instructions are found in Section. VI.A.21 Price Proposal Instructions, P4 Special Task Assignments Template.

	Q-149
	What precisely will NASA supply in terms of the ISS docking color or ring:  Will the ring and all associated parts and assemblies be supplied to the contractor free of charge?  If not free of charge, what is the cost?  Will the contractor be required to simply integrate the docking ring into its system or build the entire docking system?
	NASA will provide drawings of the Common Berthing Mechanism to the provider and they will be required to manufacture, test, verify compliance with SSP 50808 and install their side of the interface at their cost.   The offeror may also contract directly with the developer of this hardware for manufacturing, testing, and vehicle installation. 

	Q-150
	Since we are launching a government payload, is a launch license necessary?  It appears to be necessary, when reading the RFP, however, in the  past, if a carrier were to launch a government payload from a licensed spaceport, no launch license would be required under the facility's license.  Also, if were the case that no license would be required, would the same ruling apply to insurance requirements?  If insurance is required is it limited to liability, causality, etc.?  Where is the line between offerer and government customer re insurance?
	Yes, an FAA launch license is necessary because NASA will not direct or control the launch.  49 USC 70101 specifies that American entities must obtain a FAA license to launch.  The Department of Justice has determined that such a license is not required when there is "substantial involvement" by the Government in the launch.  However, for this contract NASA does not contemplate such involvement.  FAA regulations specify the amount and type of insurance that must be obtained when performing a licensed launch.

	Q-151
	Liability issues: Does offerer liability end when NASA takes over proximity ops control for docking?
	No, this is a fact-based question that requires a hypothetical response from NASA.


	#
	Question
	Response 

	Q-152
	On page 77 of the proposal in Table V.B-1 DRDS REQUIRED NEAR RFP RESPONSE, indicates that C1-7 is due "With Proposal".  This presents some confusion with the comment on page 59 section 2.1 PROGRAM MANAGEMENT which states "The Contractor shall submit a Mission Integration and Operations Management Plan (MIOMP) prior to contract award."  Is the MIOMP due at the time of RFP Response or can it be turned in prior to an award but after submittal?
	As stated in Provision VI.A.18(b): " * The Required DRDs or Attachments shall be included in the Volume submission clearly marked as an Appendix: (a) Technical Appendix – Mission Integration and Operations Management Plan (DRD C1-7)."

	Q-153
	Since unfunded SAAs with the Commercial Crew and Cargo Program Office (C3PO) do not initially allow use of the ISS for a demonstration mission, how would such an agreement enable the performance and completion of ISS integration activities?
	NASA does not intend to enter into agreements with the sole purpose of completing ISS integration.  The C3PO will consider unfunded agreements in line with the goal of developing and demonstrating commercial space transportation capabilities.  ISS requirements would be used as guidelines for the participant, but direct integration activities with the ISS program would not initially take place under this agreement.  When a participant is successful in completing an end to end system level Preliminary Design Review and establishes an acceptable business plan with the necessary financial commitments to complete the demonstration, NASA would renegotiate the unfunded SAA to allow use of the ISS for the demonstration mission.  


2. The guaranteed minimum value of this contract, in Clause I.A.1, is changed:

From:
The guaranteed minimum value of this contract is the negotiated value of 20,000 kg (20 MT) of upmass to the International Space Station (ISS) based on the values established in Clause I.A.4.

To:

The guaranteed minimum value of this contract is the negotiated value of 20,000 kg (20 MT) of upmass to the International Space Station (ISS) based on the values established in Clause I.A.4.  If the contract includes the acceptance of Sub‑CLIN 0001AC, the guaranteed minimum value of this contract is increased by the negotiated value of 3,000 kg (3 MT) of Return Cargo Downmass, based on the values established in Clause I.A.4.
NOTE: The RFP cover letter has been updated to reflect this change.  The RFP cover letter has also been revised to incorporate revised language associated with the initial task order evaluation process.  The initial task order evaluation process remains as a separate evaluation from the basic contract award.
3. The requirement in paragraph “(o) Warranty” of FAR 52.212-4 is deleted in its entirety.
4. Clause II.A.19, Mission Success Determination, Investigation, and Corrective Action, is changed to clarify: a) “Re-flight” will not be required under FAR 52.246-4; b) Prior progress payments will not be required upon reaching the considerations of the last payment milestone as required in Clause II.A.6 Resupply Mission Payments, Milestone Events and Completion Criteria and c) Cargo liability will be clarified. The applicable paragraph in Clause II.A.19 to reflect these changes are hereby made:
From:
19.3 Procedures

(a) The Contracting Officer determines whether a mission is considered a Mission Success, Partial Mission Success, or a Failed Mission, based on the agreed to criteria and corresponding data.  Within fifteen (15) calendar days from receipt of the Preliminary Post-Flight Assessment (DRD C7-1), the Contracting Officer will either determine the delivery a Mission Success or inform the Contractor of NASA’s intent to withhold final payment and mission determination.  In the event of a failed mission, the final payment shall be forfeited by the Contractor and is not recoupable.  The rights contained in this clause are in lieu of the right to terminate for cause found in paragraph (m) of FAR 52.212-4.
To:

19.3 Procedures

(a) The Contracting Officer determines whether a mission is considered a Mission Success, Partial Mission Success, or a Failed Mission, based on the agreed-to criteria and corresponding data.  Within fifteen (15) calendar days from receipt of the Preliminary Post-Flight Assessment (DRD C7-1), the Contracting Officer will either determine the delivery a Mission Success or inform the Contractor of NASA’s intent to withhold final payment and mission determination.  In the event of a failed mission, the final payment shall be forfeited by the Contractor and is not recoupable.  The Contractor will not be obligated to return prior progress payments upon reaching last payment considerations as detailed in II.A.6 Resupply Mission Payments, Milestone Events and Completion Criteria.  This clause will take precedence over paragraph (e) of FAR 52.246-4, in that NASA will not require “re-flight”.  The rights contained in this clause are in lieu of the right to terminate for cause found in paragraph (m) of FAR 52.212-4. The liability of Cargo as detailed in clause NFS 1852.245-72 Liability for Government Property Furnished for Repair or Other Services, is superseded by this clause during and after launch.  The Contractor is not liable for damage to cargo during and after launch and is limited to forfeiture of the last payment milestone only as detailed in this clause.
5. The evaluation of Past Performance in Section VII is clarified;

From:
Evaluation of Past Performance in Mission Suitability

Past Performance indicates how well an offeror performed on earlier work and can be a significant indicator of how well it can be expected to perform the work at hand. The offeror’s past performance will be evaluated as part of each distinct Mission Suitability Subfactor.  The evaluation will be based on information provided by offerors in their proposals, information obtained by NASA from the Exhibit 3 and Exhibit 4, including meeting small business utilization goals and communications with listed references as well as any other information obtained independently by NASA for each of the respective Mission Suitability Subfactors.  Past Performance is not separately scored within each of the Mission Suitability Subfactors.  In the case of an offeror without a record of relevant past performance or for whom information on past performance is not available, the offeror will not be evaluated favorably or unfavorably on past performance.

To:

Evaluation of Past Performance in Mission Suitability
Past Performance indicates how well an offeror performed on earlier work and can be a significant indicator of how well it can be expected to perform the work at hand. The offeror’s past performance will be evaluated as part of each distinct Mission Suitability Subfactor.  The evaluation will be based on information provided by offerors in their proposals (Exhibit 2 and Exhibit 3), information obtained by NASA from Exhibit 3 and Exhibit 4 from listed references, including meeting small business utilization goals, as well as any other information obtained independently by NASA for each of the respective Mission Suitability Subfactors.  Past Performance is not separately scored within each of the Mission Suitability Subfactors.  In the case of an offeror without a record of relevant past performance or for whom information on past performance is not available, the offeror will not be evaluated favorably or unfavorably on past performance.

6. The following statement is deleted from Clause VI.A.19:

NASA does not intend to accept proposals with alternate terms and conditions.

7. The Deviations and/or Exceptions (Mission Suitability Proposal) in VI.A. 20.4 is moved to Section VI.A.19 and modified as follows.
From:

Identify and explain the reason for any deviations, exceptions, or conditional assumptions taken with respect to these mission suitability proposal instructions or to any of the technical requirements of this solicitation, such as the Statement of Work and related specifications.  A deviation to or exception to a material provision of the contract may be determined as non-responsive, making the offeror ineligible for award of a contract.

To:
Identify and explain the reason for any deviations, exceptions or conditional assumptions taken with respect to any terms and conditions in this solicitation other than provided in the above paragraph, such as the Statement of Work and related specifications.  A deviation to or exception to a material provision of the contract may be determined as a failure to conform to the requirements, making the offeror ineligible for award of a contract.
8. NFS 1852.245-72 Liability for Government Property Furnished for Repair or Other Services is incorporated into the RFP at Clause II.A.26. 

9. DRDs C3-2 External Cargo ICA is updated to clarify requirements for internal and external cargo.  C4-3 Imagery is updated to make L-minus delivery dates consistent with each other and the Statement of Work.
10. The Government-supplied hardware list in Attachment V.K is updated to include EVA/IVA labels and NASA Standard Detonators.

11. Offerors are allowed to propose optional conditions for Clause II.A.19 consistent with the instructions for offeror at Provision VI.A.22 (related changes occur in VI.A.18, VI.A.19, VII.D, and I.A.4A).
12. Due date for Volumes I, II, and III are hereby revised to be delivered on 30 June 2008.  Note that the Past Performance Volume due date remains unchanged.
From:
	Volume
	Title
	Date
	Local Time

	I
	Offer Volume
	16 June 2008
	2:00 pm CDT

	II
	Mission Suitability Volume
	16 June 2008
	2:00 pm CDT

	III
	Price Volume
	16 June 2008
	2:00 pm CDT

	IV
	Past Performance Volume
	27 May 2008
	2:00 pm CDT


To:
	Volume
	Title
	Date
	Local Time

	I
	Offer Volume
	30 June 2008
	2:00 pm CDT

	II
	Mission Suitability Volume
	30 June 2008
	2:00 pm CDT

	III
	Price Volume
	30 June 2008
	2:00 pm CDT

	IV
	Past Performance Volume
	27 May 2008
	2:00 pm CDT


13. Add SPDM compatibility information on Attachment V.F External Cargo Complement.

14. Clarify “cost/price” throughout the RFP to be “price.”
